
          APPROVED 10/27/22 

  

PLANNING BOARD MINUTES                           Page 1 of 5 

October 13, 2022 

 MINUTES 

TOWN OF TOPSHAM 

PLANNING BOARD MEETING 

IN PERSON IN THE DONALD A. RUSSELL MEETING ROOM 

AND ON LINE VIA ZOOM  – OCTOBER 13, 2022,  6:30 P.M. 

________________________________________________________ 

  

 

 

MEMBERS PRESENT: Don Spann 

    Ronald Bisson 

    Kerri Bickford 

    Larry Brann 

    Dan Flaig 

    Scott Libby 
         

MEMBERS ABSENT: Joshua Spooner 
 

STAFF PRESENT:  Hap Stelling, Planning Director; Kate Burch, Assistant Planner 

 

A. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL  
 

Chair Spann called the regular meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. The Recording Secretary took the 

roll call and noted that everyone on the Board was present in person, except for Mr. Spooner 

who had been excused.  The meeting was also available on Zoom for anyone wanting to view 

the meeting or make comments.  

 

B. APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF THE SEPTEMBER 22, 2022 MEETING 
 

 Motion was made by Mr. Brann, seconded by Ms. Bickford, and it was  

 

  VOTED 

  To approve the minutes of the September 22, 2022 meeting as written. 

 
  (The vote was 5 in favor with one abstention [Mr. Bisson]). 

 

C. PUBLIC HEARING 

 

TOPSCO, LLC HAS SUBMITTED A PROPOSED 80,000 S.F. SUPERMARKET 

(MARKET BASKET) FOR REVIEW AT 169 TOPSHAM FAIR MALL ROAD, TAX 

MAP R05, LOT 21D010 

  

 Douglas E. Reynolds, P.E., Project Manager from Gorrill Palmer gave a Power Point 

presentation and reviewed changes to the plan presented before the Board in sketch plan review 

in November of 2021.  

 



          APPROVED 10/27/22 

  

PLANNING BOARD MINUTES                           Page 2 of 5 

October 13, 2022 

 Mr. Reynolds said there have been several meetings with Town staff and peer reviewers.  Some 

of the larger items changed on the new plan included the addition of a 4th leg on the roundabout 

to accommodate any future development on the lot across the street.   

 

 Jim Lamp, LT from Development, LLC said there is not yet an agreement with the roundabout 

owner and anticipates they will grant a right of way. If a right of way is not provided, plans 

have been made to either center or move the roundabout further back. It was noted that the 

sidewalks have been adjusted showing 5’ at the southwest front and 10’ inside the lot.  Seating 

areas have been added, as well as a bike rack and two picnic tables. 

 

 The landscaping plan has been completed and the plan shows landscaping even in the center 

of the roundabout.  The MDOT Traffic Movement Report is pretty much completed and the 

applicant is meeting their requests.   

 

 Tom Errico, from TY Lin, was present via Zoom.  He said the Traffic Impact Study covered a 

large area, including Winter Street and approval was still pending.  He said issues still being 

considered include: 

 

 A raised median on the Topsham Fair Mall Road between Route 196 and Winner’s Circle 

is still being considered.  This was recommended in the Topsham Fair Mall Master Plan 

and the Town approves the applicant installing it.  

 Considerations need to be given to completing a sidewalk at the corner by Arby’s.  The 

sidewalk could be relocated on Arby’s property, with their agreement.  The DOT is asking 

that this be done.   

 Consideration is being given to making the Winter Street intersection a 4-way stop.  

 Route 196 and I295 south bound should be changed to one lane from the west and a 

dedicated right turn lane.  Safety concerns need to be addressed. 

 A cross walk should be added on Winter Street, ADA compliant and also on Bickford 

Drive. 

 DOT is asking for $40,000 for impact fees for each change and $23,000 for the work on 

Route 201 and Elm Street. 

 

Mr. Lamp said MDOT requires that all the above must be completed before the store can open.  

He talked about getting rid of 2 right-hand turns off the TFM Road.  He said he doesn’t like the 

feeling of being held hostage to all the above as the store is a half mile away.  Assistant Planner 

Burch responded that these requests are not from the Town, but from MDOT.  It was also noted 

that there is a new owner of Arby’s who may be amenable to allowing the sidewalk to be made 

wider with removing a small area of the retaining wall.  Board member Bickford asked what was 

wrong with the corner by Arby’s as it stands.  All agreed that it was a safety concern. 

 

Mr. Lamp referenced an item under number 7, page 7, in memo from the Assistant Planner to the 

Planning Board dated October 6, 2022 – “No outdoor storage areas or merchandising areas are 

featured on the site plan,” and the bubble on page 6 (from Traffic Engineer Tom Errico) “The end 

island near Station 20+00 should be expanded such that the pedestrian walkway is physically 

separated from parked vehicles to ensure safe pedestrian access and prevent encroachment from 

vehicles and shopping carts.  Separating the walkway would only result in the loss of 2 parking 



          APPROVED 10/27/22 

  

PLANNING BOARD MINUTES                           Page 3 of 5 

October 13, 2022 

spots, from a total of 430.”  Mr. Lamp said the applicants have done everything asked of them and 

they asked for a sidewalk in front of the store from the beginning.  He said he wants to be on the 

record that this is a Town requirement for a sidewalk going nowhere and the applicant does not 

want to be liable for any suits if anyone gets hurt.  Mr. Lamp said he has designed over 40 Market 

Basket stores over the years and disagrees with the peer reviewer. Board member Bickford said 

the area is clear in front of all the Hannaford stores both in Topsham and Brunswick and when 

people leave the store they head straight for their vehicles.  

 

Regarding no outdoor storage areas, Mr. Lamp said it has been identified on the plans from the 

beginning that outdoor seasonal sales where plants and like items will be displayed.  

 

At this point in the meeting, Chairman Spann opened the meeting to receive comments from 

members of the Board.  

 

Mr. Flaig asked if the roundabout at the Bedford, New Hampshire store was the same size as the 

one being proposed for this project.  Response was yes, it is the same size.  Mr. Flaig then asked 

if there had been any problems with that roundabout and response was “no, it works fine.”  Mr. 

Brann commented on the traffic study saying not much was studied with the Topsham Fair Mall 

intersection with Winter Street.  Response was that a lot of study and analysis was done and the 

sight line needed improvement which will happen by the clearing of some trees. This area will be 

monitored after the store opens with a 6-month evaluation.  

 

With no further comments to be heard, the Public Hearing was declared open, with comments 

received from: 

 

Mark Ponziani, Trustee of the Sewer District – Mr. Ponziani said he had a concern to express, 

but first he said he had heard that the Assistant Planner, Kate Burch, was leaving and needed to 

say the loss of Ms. Burch would be a big loss to the Town.  He then addressed his concern saying 

the District cannot guarantee the status of the stub which is buried 20’ underground.  He said the 

sewer needs to run to the street.  Mr. Ponziani said when he first looked at the plans, he marked in 

red ink the importance of the new sewer being laid no shallower than 005.  It appears to be changed 

on the new plans.  He added that even though this is not owned by the Sewer District, we have 

some say because they are hooking into us.  Mr. Ponziani said when they built the road, snorty 

clay was found, and the reason they requested a copy of the borings, which they have not received. 

Mr. Lamp responded that he will see that the borings report will be provided.  Mr. Ponziani also 

asked that the piping be wrapped and lined with heavy stone.  He said his concerns were not serious 

issues, but the team needed to hear them.  

 

Edward Ezzard, 79 Deer Run – Mr. Ezzard attended the meeting via Zoom and raised his hand 

to speak.  He asked what the result of tonight’s meeting will be.  Is it the end result?  Chairman 

Spann responded that this meeting is for Site Plan Approval.  He added that when the Board  

approves a site plan, it is approve with conditions.  Mr. Ezzard said “Thank you” and had no further 

questions. 

 

Doug Reynolds responded to Mr. Ponziani’s concern and said he will see that the 005 will be met 

and that they will provide copies of  the borings. 

 



          APPROVED 10/27/22 

  

PLANNING BOARD MINUTES                           Page 4 of 5 

October 13, 2022 

With no further comments to be heard, the Public Hearing was declared closed.   

 

Board member Flaig was recognized and said that after reading through all the materials he feels 

this project was a very comprehensive process back and forth with staff, and the applicant was 

very accommodating.  It is a good project and there are  always traffic concerns with a big project 

like this. Over all, the peer review process and staff process has worked out very well. 

 

Board member Bickford said not to get back to the parking issue and planter.  However, if there 

were a compromise and if there was an idea, it would be worth bringing it up.  If there was 

something else that could be done to separate that.  I am the shopper in my family and I shop for 

others and when you go into a parking lot I do not go across pedestrian parking spaces. Most 

people, when they come out of the store, go directly to their vehicle.  

 

Mr. Lamp said to Tom, after thinking about it,  I don’t like the idea of two islands.  I would like to 

make them double wide and a handicapped ramp up across and back down so you are actually 

entering a landscaped area.  Tom said he would be fine with that. He added that Kate Burch has 

done a wonderful job and she has been a great sport working with me.  She has been a joy to work 

with.   

 

The discussion moved to the waivers.   

 

Lighting Waiver  

Board member Libby said we didn’t see the lighting plan.  Mr. Lamp said a plan was submitted.  

He said there are very specific requirements where the lighting should be.  He said they will meet 

the intent of the regulations and a sight lighting expert will review the plans to be sure lighting 

requirements are met.  He added that the Town will hire a lighting expert to review the final plans.  

The Planner said sight lighting engineers are difficult to fine.  Tom Saucier has recommended 

someone who will be contacted.  

 

Motion was made by Mr. Libby, seconded by Mr. Brann, and it was unanimously 

 

VOTED 

 To grant the waiver request for Ordinance Sections 175-9.F(1), 175-9.G(2), 175-9.H(4) with 

the condition that a peer review lighting engineer is retained, at the applicant’s expense, to 

work with the applicant and town staff on a lighting plan that meets the intentions of the 

ordinance while addressing site-specific concerns.  

 

Landscaping Waiver 

Mr. Lamp said existing vegetation will be used as much as practicable.  

 

Motion was made by Mr. Libby, seconded by Mr. Brann, and it was unanimously 

 

VOTED 

 To grant the waiver request for Ordinance Sections 175-10.C.(1), 175-10.B(4), 175-10.B(5), 

175-10.B(6) and 175-10.E(2) as the Board feels is appropriate given site constraints, with the 

condition that a peer review landscape architect will work with staff and the applicant, at 



          APPROVED 10/27/22 

  

PLANNING BOARD MINUTES                           Page 5 of 5 

October 13, 2022 

applicant’s expense, to ensure the final landscape plan meets the intent of the ordinance while 

addressing site-specific concerns.  

 

 

There was a discussion of the traffic coming from Brunswick backing up at the intersection of 

Route 201 and Elm Street light and Mr. Libby asked if the intersection was looked at closely as to 

what traffic issues are for the right turn onto Main Street from Winter Street or left turn onto Elm 

Street Extension as far as heading north on Main Street.  Randy Dunton from Gorrill Palmer 

responded that the applicant has given extra money to be added to the project already going on in 

that area.  

 

Regarding snow, it was noted that all snow will be retained on site all winter long.  Water will go 

into the stormwater treatment area on site which will take care of the salt.  

 

Motion was made by Mr. Libby, seconded by Ms. Bickford, and it was unanimously 

 

VOTED 

 To approve the Site Plan for 169 Topsham Fair Mall Road, Tax Map(s) R05, Lot 021D-10, 

with staff recommended conditions 1-26 with Findings identified in the staff memo from 

Assistant Planner Burch dated October 6, 2022 with changes as made at the meeting regarding 

the outdoor facilities.  The Board finds that the site plan application meets the applicable 

standards of Section 175-8 and Chapter 225 of the Topsham Code.  

 

D. ADJOURN   

 

Motion was made by Mr. Libby, seconded by Ms. Bickford, and it was unanimously  

 

VOTED  

To adjourn the meeting at 8:10 p.m.   

Respectfully submitted,  

     

Patty Williams, Recording Secretary    


